Winning with Wimpy

I have an expert friend who no longer plays bridge. Back when he was playing, he used to claim that the ALERT System was the single worst policy that the ACBL ever instituted. I disagreed then, but the older I get, the more I see the wisdom in his words.

His main complaint was that the “Alert” announcement virtually never helped the opponents (as it’s intended to do), but rather had the effect of either waking up the partner of the player making the alert, or reassuring the bidder that his partner remembered their conventional agreement.

Let’s look at an example. You hold ♠ KJT73 ♥ AT952 ♦ 7 ♣ 96. At favorable vulnerability your RHO opens a strong No Trump (15-17). You are playing Cappelleti, and you choose to bid 2♦ which, by agreement, shows both majors. LHO passes and your partner, appearing distracted, (perhaps thinking about the way he just butchered the previous hand), passes as well. RHO re-opens with a double. What do you do?

I’m ashamed to say I know an awful lot of players who would try 2♥ here. Is it legal? Well, yes – and no. If there were no alert system, it would be 100% legal without question. You are perfectly within your rights to believe that 2♥, (maybe even 2♥x) will score better than 2♦x.  In fact, if your partner had alerted 2♦ as showing both majors, and subsequently passed anyway, you could bid anything you like.

Did I forget to mention that partner failed to alert your bid? This raises a dilemma. Did partner know that you were showing both majors and elect to play 2♦ anyway, or did he forget what you were playing and think that you have diamonds? If partner alerts your bid – and then chooses to pass – it becomes a lot easier to pass the double, doesn’t it?  After all, you’ve described your hand, and you don’t know that partner doesn’t have seven or eight diamonds over on his side.

Same hand, same auction, except that this time partner doesn’t alert and raises you to 3♦.  RHO doubles and once again you have to decide what to do. Once again, if partner had alerted 2♦ before making his extremely unexpected “raise”, it would be so very much easier to pass.

This is one of the problems inherent in the Alert System: namely that alerting a bid that should not have been alerted, as well as failing to alert a bid which merited one, gives unauthorized information (UI) to the other partner. Once there is a possibility of UI, you may no longer be permitted to make any call you want. Unfortunately, the director, (or a committee), may ultimately decide whether or not there was another logically reasonable alternative available that you might have chosen.

In the two examples above, it’s crystal clear that PASS is a reasonable alternative to bidding 2♥ (or 3♥), and if you pulled the double, you can expect that the director will adjust the result if the decision proved beneficial. Of course, if you pulled the double and got a worse score, it will stand. This “Double Jeopardy” situation arose from partner’s failure to alert 2♦, and once that happened, you had better simply hope that you are in the best contract, because attempts to improve it won’t usually work.
After this discussion, you’d probably assume that I’d be in favor of abolishing the ALERT System. Well… no. As much as I’ve come to accept that my friend had valid criticisms, he never came up with a solution which worked better. Much like socialized medicine, there is no shortage of valid arguments on both sides. For now, the best advice is to know what you are playing, and alert the bids that require them.  I’ve barely scratched the surface of this topic and will discuss it further next issue.
For more tips on improving your bidding and defense go to www.wimpy.biz/bridge  
